
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

AGENDA Tuesday, March 2, 2021  7:00PM 
 By ZOOM 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION

C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 2-2-2021 and 2-23-2021 Executive Session

D. REPORTS:
1) Planning & Zoning Report
2) City Manager’s Report
3) City Attorney’s Report
4) Council Remarks
5) Mayor’s Report

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will be
allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be limited to
40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please submit those to
the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an
opportunity for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner.

F. OLD BUSINESS

G. NEW BUSINESS
G1) Adopt Resolution Calling upon President Biden and the U.S. Congress to Provide Additional Assistance 
to the Rental Housing Community 

G2) Proclamation in recognition of Women's History Month  

G3) Proclamation in recognition of National Read Across America Day on March 2nd 

G4) Adopt Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City Manager to Execute a Lease Supplement 
under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase of a Bucket Truck ($91,324) and a Pickup 
Truck ($29,877) in the Principal Amount of $121,201.00 

G5) Adopt Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City Manager to Execute a Lease Supplement 
under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase of a Sanitation Truck in the Principal Amount 
of $145,919.00 

G6) Adopt a Resolution to create a task force to provide recommendations on policies and training for the 
Clarkston Police Department 

G7) Amend Clarkston Code of Ordinances, Article II. – Property Maintenance Code, Sec. 5-66 Notice of 
Violation Requiring a Warning Before Issuing a Citation Unless Issue is an Immediate Threat to Public Health 
or Safety        

G8) Review request to vacate/abandon Wagoner St 

G9) Adopt a Mask Mandate Ordinance  

G10) Adopt Resolution to Request GA General Assembly to Dissolve  the CRA

H. ADJOURNMENT:

Jamie Carroll     Ahmed Hassan 
Awet Eyasu  Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 

        Robin I. Gomez– City Manager 

Beverly Burks –Mayor 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

MINUTES 
CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, February 2, 2021 
Via Zoom 
Officials Present by Teleconference 
Mayor:  Beverly H. Burks 
Council: Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 
City Manager: Robin I. Gomez  
City Clerk: Tracy Ashby  
City Attorney: Stephen Quinn 

 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

 
B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Debra Johnson, Laura Hopkins 
 Absent: Ahmed Hassan 
 

C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 1-12-2021 
Debra Johnson made a motion to Approve the 1-12-2021minutes.   Awet Eyasu seconded the motion. A vote 
was called and the motion carried. (4,0).  
 
C2) Micro Life Institute Inc/The Cottages on Vaughan Residential Development 
Representatives for MicroLife provided a brief presentation on the status and progress of the project. 
 
 

D. REPORTS:   
1) Planning & Zoning Report 
Shawanna Qawiy reported that the Zoning Rewrite contract has been completed and is pending signatures, She 
discussed the status for the steering committee, and she discussed that filming in Clarkston of Raising Dion for 
the week of February 2nd.  

 
2) City Manager’s Report 
The City Manager provided updates on encouraging residents to continue to wear a mask, the importance of 
social distance, covid testing in Clarkston and that Ethne Health has started a vaccine site that will follow the 
State priority criteria.  

 
Meeting restarted 7:18pm  
 

Mr. Gomez discussed the City Administrative operations and that the buildings will remain to be closed, 
currently thru the end of February, and status will be contingent on covid updates.  Alcohol server cards are 
now being issued by appointment only, building permits are being processed under an online process with the 
Planning Department.  Mr. Gomez provided an update on decorative lighting, banners and plantings with the 
streetscape project.  The Grand opening/ rededication for Friendship Forest will be held on Friday, 3-12-2021 
at 1pm.  He reminder that the Council/ Staff Retreat via zoom, will be held on Friday, February 12 and the 
public can watch meeting.  Mr. Gomez provided the Financial report thru year end 2020 and there are no 
significant changes.  

 
3) City Attorney’s Report  

No report 
 
 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

4) Council Remarks 
Awet Eyasu discussed the Public Safety SAC meeting scheduled to be held by Zoom on 2-9-2021. 
 
Laura Hopkins thanked the City Manager for assisting with vaccination drive on the past weekend. 
 

5) Mayor’s Report 
The Mayor reminded residents of the upcoming Special Election 3-16-2021 and she encouraged active 
voting.  

 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will 
be allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be 
limited to 40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please 
submit those to the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council 
desires to allow an opportunity for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, 
timely manner. 
 
Mayor Burks read the public comment policy. 
Mr. Gomez provided the names of registered speakers. 
 
Brian Medford thanked the City Manager for handling the issue on early morning dumpsters pickups on West 
Rowland.  
 
Mark Perkins discussed his candidacy for the upcoming March 16 Special Election and he extended an invitation for 
residents to contact him. 
 
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
F1) Appoint/ fill one (1) vacant position on the Planning and Zoning Board. 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to  nominate Lisa Williams to serve on the Planning and Zoning Committee. 
Laura Hopkins seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4,0). 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

G1)  Standing Advisory Committees - Appointing/Selecting Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Discussion on the Standing Advisory Committee and the proposed Chair, Vice Chair and members of the SAC. 
 
Public Safety and Legal Committee 
Chair: Awet Eyasu 
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson 
Jamie Carroll 
Mayor Burks 
 
Housing and Infrastructure Committee 
Co-Chair: Jamie Carroll 
Vice Chair: Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 
Mayor Burks 
 
Community Development Committee 
Chair: Debra Johnson 
Vice Chair: Awet Eyasu 
 
Transportation and Environment Committee 
Chair: Awet Eyasu 
Vice Chair: Laura Hopkins 
 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

Marketing and Civic Innovation Committee 
Chair: Ahmed Hassan 
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson 
Mayor Burks  
 
Equity, Inclusion, and Opportunity 
Chair: Laura Hopkins 
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson 
Mayor Burks 
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to approve the 2021 Standing Advisory Committee members with the inclusion 
of the Mayor on the Marketing & Civic Innovation Committee. Awet Eyasu seconded the motion.  A vote was 
called and the motion carried (4,0). 
 
G2) Public Hearing: Conditional use permit request for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road Suites B 
& C. 
Shawanna Qawiy briefly explain the purpose for the item as a request from Mohommad Bilal Khattak for a 
conditional use permit for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road, Suites B & C, zoned I, Light 
Industrial Clarkston, GA 30021, for used a coin laundromat. 
 
conditional use permit application request shall be heard at public hearings to determine whether or not the 
applicants proposed conditional use would generally be in the public interest. In considering whether a 
proposed conditional use is in the public interest, the mayor and city council shall consider the following, 
among other relevant factors: (1) Whether the conditional use would be injurious to the use and enjoyment of 
the environment or of other property in the immediate vicinity or diminish and impair property values within 
the surrounding neighborhood; (2) Whether the proposed conditional use would increase local or state 
expenditures in relation to cost of servicing or maintaining neighboring properties; (3) Whether the 
establishment of the conditional use would impede the normal and orderly development of surrounding 
property for uses predominant in the area; and (4) Whether the location and character of the proposed 
conditional use would be consistent with a desirable pattern of development for the locality in general. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval with staff’s seven (7) recommendations amending 
the hours under condition number 7. 
1. The business shall only be limited to operating as a coin laundromat. 
2. There shall be no long term or overnight parking. 
3. The owner/tenant shall adhere to Sections 12-20 Disorderly Conduct and 12-28 Noise. 
4. The business shall not emit noise, vibrations, smoke, gas, fumes, or odors that would be 
a nuisance to the adjacent properties. 
5. The business shall comply with the Department of Natural Resources-Environmental 
Protection Division (EPD) policies/ procedures and laws relative to air/land quality, 
environmental pollutants disposal. 
6. The owner/tenant shall adhere to all City requirements for plan review, permitting, and 
business licensing. 
7. Hours of operation shall be 6am -11pm, Monday thru Sunday. 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
No speakers in favor or opposition to the request 
The Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
Discussion that the location for a laundry mat will be helpful for the surrounding apartment communities.  
 
Debra Hopkins made a motion to approve the request for Conditional use permit for property located at 1051 
Montreal Rd Ste B and C zoned I, Light Industrial, for used a coin laundromat, with the 7 condition as listed by 
Planning & Zoning Board. Laura Hopkins seconded the motion.  



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

Awet Eyasu asked if the applicant was agreeable to for the seven conditions?  Mohommad Bilal Khattak stated 
he was in agreement with the seven conditions for the conditional use permit.  
The  vote was called and the motion carried (4, 0).  
 
G3) Consider a request for a shared or reduced parking agreement from Mr. Henock Mekonnen for a 
proposed retail development at 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue with the current parking (property) for a gas 
station located at 3874 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue. 
Shawanna Qawiy detailed the request.   Under Code Section 1108, the Mayor and City Council shall review 
and approve requests to reduce the parking requirements through a shared or reduced parking arrangement. 
Staff has recommended approving the reduced/shared parking agreement of 33 spaces with the conditions 
that the applicant adheres to Section 1108: Shared or reduced parking standards, the NC-1 zoning district 
requirements for permitted uses, and all development, landscaping and permitting requirements for 
construction of the new building. 
 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to approve the request for a shared or reduced parking agreement from Mr. Henock 
Mekonnen for a proposed retail development at 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue with the current parking 
(property) for a gas station located at 3874 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue. Debra Johnson seconded the motion. 
A vote was called and the motion carried (4,0). 
 
G4) Review/Discuss Approval of Request from CORE (Community Organized Relief Effort) for COVID-19 
Testing and/or Vaccine Funding.   
Mr. Gomez stated the City had received a funding request from CORE to provide for covid testing. 
 
City Council discussion and consensus that the City appreciates the services they have previously provided, 
but that the City does not have the additional resources at this point, to financially support the request.   
Council consensus this is a discussion only item and that no action is to be taken. 
 
G5) Encourage plants options on food menu and all City events   
Awet Eyasu stated this is item is to encourage more plant options in the City.  The City will mandate that any 
future City sponsored events will have plant options and we will encourage local businesses to have plant 
options on their menus.  
 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to adopt the resolution encouraging more plant and mandate a plant option for city 
events. Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  
Vote: A vote was called and the motion carried (4, 0).  
 
G6) Proclamation for Black History Month 
Mayor Burks discussed that she placed the proclamation on the agenda to ensure that Black History Month is 
acknowledged in the City.  
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to approve the Proclamation for Black History Month. Awet Eyasu seconded the 
motion.   A vote was called and the motion carried (4, 0). 
 
G7) A Resolution to Refer to the Housing Committee to make policy recommendations for affordable 
housing solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund. 
Mayor Burks stated the purpose of this item is to do the follow up work and to make sure we are compliant 
and pro-active on affordable housing and to make sure a policy is in-place.  
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to adopt a resolution to refer to the housing committee to make policy 
recommendations for affordable housing solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund 
Awet Eyasu seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried ( 4, 0).  
 

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION to Discuss a Legal Matter 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a legal matter. Laura Hopkins seconded the 
motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4,0). 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

  
Awet Eyasu made a motion to close the Executive Session and to go into open session.  Laura Hopkins 
seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4,0) 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT:  

 
Jamie Carroll made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called 
and the motion carried (4, 0).  

 



MINUTES 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday February 23, 2021 -7:00pm 

Officials Present 

Mayor:   Beverly Burks 
Council:  Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Ahmed Hassan, Laura Hopkins, 
Debra Johnson 

City Manager:  Robin I. Gomez  
City Clerk:  Tracy Ashby  
City Attorney:  Stephen Quinn 
 

The Mayor called the Work Session to order at 7:00pm.  

Work Session  

F. EXECUTIVE SESSION- Legal Issue 

Awet Eyasu made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a Legal Issue.  Laura Hopkins 
seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).   

Executive Session to discuss a Legal Issue. 

Awet Eyasu made a motion to close the executive session and to go into the work session.  Debra Johnson 
seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4, 0).   

Meeting adjourned. 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Discussion- Adopt a Resolution Calling upon President Biden and the U.S. Congress to provide additional 
assistance to the Rental Housing Community 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Resolution Calling upon President Biden and the U.S. Congress to provide 
additional assistance to the Rental Housing Community 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G1 

ACTION TYPE: 
ResolutionHEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Awet Eyasu,  Jamie 
Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



 
RESOLUTION CALLING UPON PRESIDENT BIDEN AND THE U.S. CONGRESS TO 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE TO THE RENTAL HOUSING COMMUNITY 
 
Sponsored by AWET EYASU 
 
WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to negatively impact all aspects of our daily life; 
and 
WHEREAS, to protect public health and slow transmission of this highly contagious 
communicable virus, the Center for Disease Control and Prevention and state and local 
departments of public health have issued various orders to close or limit a wide range of 
businesses and economic activity, causing widespread unemployment; and 
WHEREAS, individuals exposed to COVID-19 may be temporarily unable to report to work due 
to illness caused by COVID-19 or quarantines related to COVID-19; and 
WHEREAS, individuals directly affected by COVID-19 may experience loss of income and 
expensive health care and medical coverage making it impossible to fulfill their rent payment 
obligations; and 
WHEREAS, the inability of renters to pay their rent directly impacts the nation’s housing 
providers who depend on rent payments to make their mortgage and insurance payments, 
maintain their apartment buildings, pay their utility and refuse removal bills, and meet their 
property tax obligations that fund our community services; and 
WHEREAS, the majority of our nation’s housing rental stock is owned and maintained by small 
and mid-sized housing providers who lack the reserves to absorb any loss of monthly rental 
income; and 
WHEREAS, since the beginning of the pandemic, many housing providers have worked closely 
with their residents by creating flexible rent payment plans, waiving fees and connecting 
residents with social services; and 
WHEREAS, state and local governments have created rental assistance programs to assist 
renters and housing providers make ends meet; and 
WHEREAS, in recognition of the impact on housing of this public health crisis, the United States 
Congress has approved $25 billion in direct emergency rental assistance; and 
WHEREAS, these efforts do not begin to address the housing crisis facing the nation as ten 
million renters were projected by Moody’s Analytics to owe over $57 billion in back rent in 2020 
alone; and 
WHEREAS, specific and targeted federal assistance is needed in the areas of short-term 
Emergency Response, mid-term Recovery, and long-term planning to Rebuild our nation’s 
communities; now, therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Mayor, and the City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia, 
call upon President Joseph R. Biden and the United States Congress to employ the full weight 
of the federal government to assist the rental housing community by incorporating the following 
policy priorities: 
Short-Term Emergency Response 
Provide assistance to residents that have been financially impacted by the virus, 



Provide additional allocations to the Emergency Rental Assistance Program to fill the assistance 
gap and respond more effectively to the outstanding need, and 
Promote flexible policies that enable grantees to widely and efficiently distribute rental 
assistance to all who are in financial need. 
Mid-Term Recovery 
Transition from early pandemic emergency response to a deliberate and sustainable recovery 
plan that provides resources to impacted businesses and residents, and 
Promote policies that continue to narrowly target and better assist those with enduring and 
demonstrable financial need, and 
Fully fund existing programs, such as the HUD Section Housing Choice Voucher, to fund 
long-term housing assistance. 
Long-Term Rebuilding 
Extend the “Build Back Better” initiative to the production of rental housing, with a focus on 
affordable, workforce and middle market housing, and 
Expand federal infrastructure priorities to drive new investment in rental housing, including 
affordable, workforce and middle market housing, and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a suitable copy of this resolution be presented to President 
Joseph R. Biden; the Honorable Speaker of the House, Nancy Pelosi; the Honorable Senate 
Majority Leader, Chuck Schumer; and the members of the Georgia congressional delegation.  
SO RESOLVED, this _____ day of ________________, 2021. 
                                                                                                                                               CITY 
COUNCIL 
                                                                                     CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA  
  
                                                                                      __________________________________ 
                                                                                      BEVERLY BURKS, Mayor  
 
 
__________________________  
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 
 
 
 ____________________________  
Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 
 
 
  
 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Adopt – Proclamation in recognition of Women's History Month 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Proclamation in recognition of Women's History Month 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G2 

ACTION TYPE: 
Proclamation HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Beverly Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Proclamation Designating the Month of March as “Women’s History Month” 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, and ethnic background have made historic 
contributions to the growth and strength of our Nation in countless recorded and unrecorded 
ways; and 

WHEREAS, American women have played and continue to play critical economic, cultural, and 
social role in every sphere of the life of the Nation by constituting a significant portion of the 
labor force working inside and outside of the home; and 

WHEREAS, American women have played a unique role throughout the history of the Nation by 
providing the majority of the volunteer labor force of the Nation; and 

WHEREAS, American women were particularly important in the establishment of early 
charitable, philanthropic, and cultural institutions in our Nation; and 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, and ethnic background served as early 
leaders in the forefront of every major progressive social change movement; and 

WHEREAS, American women have served our country courageously in the military; and 

WHEREAS, American women have been leaders, not only in securing their own rights of 
suffrage and equal opportunity, but also in the abolitionist movement, the emancipation 
movement, the industrial labor movement, the civil rights movement, and other movements, 
especially the peace movement, which create a more fair and just society for all; and 

WHEREAS, despite these contributions, the role of American women in history has been 
consistently overlooked and undervalued, in the literature, teaching and study of American 
history: 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Beverly H. Burks, Mayor of the City of Clarkston, Georgia and on behalf of the 
Clarkston City Council, hereby proclaim the month of March 2021 as  

Women’s History Month 

in the City of Clarkston, and the City Council and Staff hereby acknowledge and celebrate the 
contributions of women and this proclamation calls upon the people of the City of Clarkston to observe 
March as Women’s History Month with appropriate programs, ceremonies, and activities. 

SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021.  
 
ATTEST: CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
By _____________________  _____________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk  Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Discussion – Adopt a Proclamation in recognition of National Read Across America Day on March 2nd 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Proclamation in recognition of National Read Across America Day on March 
2nd 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G3 

ACTION TYPE: 
Proclamation HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Beverly Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



City of Clarkston Read Across America Day and Celebration of Dr. Seuss’s Birthday 
March 2, 2021 

 
“The more that you read, the more things you will know.  The more that you learn, the more places you 
will go.” Dr. Seuss 
 
WHEREAS, every year, the month of March is National Reading Month, initiated by the National 
Education Association (NEA); 
 
WHEREAS, National Reading Month starts with READ Across America Day on March 2, which is also 
the birthday of Dr. Seuss;  and 
 
WHEREAS, Theodor Seuss Geisel was an American artist, book publisher, animator, poet, political 
cartoonist as well as an author who authored 60 children’s books, including The Cat in the Hat; and 
 
WHEREAS, Read Across America Day calls upon everyone to read and engage with children to make 
reading more fun; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential to read and talk to babies at birth, when the baby’s brain begins to develop; 
research tells us that it is crucial to speak and read to your baby and toddler in your home language as he 
or she will learn English more quickly; and 
 
WHEREAS, reading plays a vital role in shaping all of our lives, studies show that children learn 4,000 – 
l2,000 words every year by reading, and reading reduces stress by 68 percent;  and 
 
WHEREAS, research shows reading helps to heighten overall brain function and increase memory and 
regular reading can slow the decline of memory and brain function that comes with age; and 
 
WHEREAS, books can help students build their capacity to understand and acknowledge the feelings of 
others, reading can create empathy and community connections; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential for children to see themselves reflected in book characters, communities must 
promote books like Peter’s Chair by Ezra Jack Keats, Antiracist Baby, by Ibram X. Kendi, or The 
Name Jar, by Yang Sook Choi; and 
 
WHEREAS, families who are unable to read to their children can promote the joy of reading by talking 
about the pictures in a book and sharing stories from their culture; and 
 
WHEREAS, families, youth, older adults, and all programs, and schools should have access to a wide 
range of books by diverse authors and in multiple languages; and 
 
WHEREAS, a good book can help children and adults understand what it is like for people who don’t 
share their race, religion, sexual orientation, or social-economic status; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Clarkston created the Clarkston Early Learning Task Force to develop an early 
learning plan with strategies to ensure equitable policies, practices, and programs and to promote literacy 
and quality early learning; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Clarkston celebrates and commends the many organizations and groups that 
support literacy and reading all year long, including the DeKalb Library Clarkton Branch, Family 
Literacy Program-Friends of Refugees, Parents as Teachers (Scottdale Early Learning and New American 



Pathways), the READY Schools sponsored by CDF Action and Scottdale Early Learning, the annual City 
of Clarkston Tell Me a Story! Festival, Georgia Piedmont Technical College, The Refugee Village, 
Clarkston area childcare centers. Head Start, after-school programs, schools, and more. 
 
Therefore, the City of Clarkston declares Tuesday, March 2, 2021, 
 

Read Across America Day and Celebration of Dr. Seuss’s Birthday 
 
And encourages the citizens of Clarkston to read books with children on this day and every day and to 
support the City’s organizations that promote the joy of reading for all. 
 
SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021.  
 
ATTEST: CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
By _____________________  _____________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk  Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City Manager to Execute a Lease 
Supplement under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase of a Bucket Truck ($91,324) 
and a Pickup Truck ($29,877) in the Principal Amount of $121,201.00 

PURPOSE:  To consider adopting the attached Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City 
Manager to Execute a Lease Supplement Under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase 
of a Bucket Truck and a Pickup Truck in the Principal Amount of $121,201.00. 

 NEED/ IMPACT:  The City of Clarkston 2021 approved budget includes appropriations for the issuance of 
lease/purchase agreement to purchase a new Sanitation Truck for the Public Works Department.   

Staff has obtained a quote from BB&T Bank for the issuance of a lease supplement through the GMA 
Direct Leasing Program to fund the purchase of the above referenced equipment in the amount of 
$121,201.00 with an anticipated closing prior to March 15, 2021. The interest rate charged on the 
principal balance will be 2.13% annually amortized over 7 years.  Accordingly, the lease payments will 
made in quarterly payments of $4,670.81 over the next 7 years.  Total interest payments to BB&T over 
the life of the lease will be $9,581.68.  

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached Resolution to Execute the 
Lease Supplement Agreement.     

ITEM NO: G4

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES    NO 
Pages: 23 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Robin Gomez 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489 ext. 411 













































Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City Manager to Execute a Lease 
Supplement under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase of a Sanitation Truck in the 
Principal Amount of $145,919.00 

PURPOSE:  To consider adopting the attached Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the City 
Manager to Execute a Lease Supplement Under the GMA Direct Leasing Program for the Lease/Purchase 
of a new Sanitation Truck in the Principal Amount of $145,919.00. 

 NEED/ IMPACT:  The City of Clarkston 2021 approved budget includes appropriations for the issuance of 
lease/purchase agreement to purchase a new Sanitation Truck for the Public Works Department.   

Staff has obtained a quote from BB&T Bank for the issuance of a lease supplement through the GMA 
Direct Leasing Program to fund the purchase of the above referenced equipment in the amount of 
$145,919.00 with an anticipated closing prior to March 15, 2021. The interest rate charged on the 
principal balance will be 2.13% annually amortized over 7 years.  Accordingly, the lease payments will 
made in quarterly payments of $5,623.39 over the next 7 years.  Total interest payments to BB&T over 
the life of the lease will be $11,535.92.  

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached Resolution to Execute the 
Lease Supplement Agreement.     

ITEM NO:G5 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES    NO 
Pages: 16 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Robin Gomez 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489 ext. 411 



































CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Adopt a Resolution to create a task force to provide recommendations on policies and 
training for the Clarkston Police Department 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Resolution to create a task force to provide recommendations on policies and 
training for the Clarkston Police Department 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G6 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Beverly Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA, 
CREATING A POLICE COMMUNITY TASK FORCE FOR THE PURPOSE OF STUDYING AND 

MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADDRESS POLICE OPERATIONS AND COMMUNITY AND 
POLICE RELATIONS WITHIN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the relationship between the community and the Clarkston Police Department (CPD) is an 
important and valued focus for the City Council, City administration, police leadership, and the citizens of 
Clarkston; and  

WHEREAS, the uniqueness and diversity of the City of Clarkston requires the usage of best procedures 
and practices to better serve the residents and encourage more community policing; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that creating a task force to study and present 
recommendations to City staff and City Council on matters related to the operation of the Clarkston 
Police Department and its personnel would be beneficial in addressing community and police relations.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CLARKSTON, GEORGIA:  

Section 1. Purpose: The City Council hereby creates a Police Community Task Force (the “Task Force”). 
The purpose of the Task Force is to inform Council about the status of police and community relations 
within the City, and to study and make recommendations related to police operations especially in terms 
of training, transparency, and oversight. The purpose of the Task Force is not to examine or review or 
make recommendations on a specific incident.  

Section 2. Specific Charge: The initial charge of the Task Force will be the evaluation, discussion and 
development of recommendations to improve effective and transparent communication between CPD and 
the community, including recommendations for police training, and police practices and procedures. The 
Task Force may recommend additional areas to study. City Council may modify, amend, expand, or 
change the specific charge of the Task Force by resolution so long as the modification, amendment, 
expansion or change does not assign the review of a specific incident to this Task Force. 

Section 3. Term: The initial term of the Task Force for the specific charge stated in Section 2 will be for 
one (1) year from the date of formal appointment of the Task Force membership. The City Council may 
extend the term of the Task Force by resolution. If the Task Force completes its charge prior to the end of 
the term, it may disband.  

Section 4. Membership: The Task Force shall consist of no less than nine (9) voting members and no 
more than fifteen (15) voting members, which shall include one (1) Chairperson who can be an 
organization representative or individual member. All Task Force members shall be volunteers and shall 
participate without compensation. All Task Force members shall be required to participate in training on 
police operations, as established by the City Manager or his designee, related to the Task Force’s charge. 
The term of appointment for members of the Task Force shall be for two years or until the end of the Task 
Force term, whichever is sooner. In the event the Task Force continues past two years, members can serve 
an additional two-year term.  

(a) Organization Representation: To the extent possible, the Task Force should consist of at least one 
member from each of the following groups, which representative shall be selected by the 
organization listed: 
• DeKalb County Chapter of the NAACP  
• National Organization of Black Law Enforcement Executives (NOBLE) 



• Clarkston Community of Faith  
• DeKalb County Public Schools and Clarkston School District  
• Mental Health organization 
• Domestic Violence organization 
• Criminal justice reform organization 
• nonprofit that works with teens  
• Multicultural organization 

(b) Individual Representation: The Task Force should also consist of individuals who are residents 
but not limited to the City of Clarkston and, to the extent possible, meet the following criteria: 
• Individuals with direct experience in the criminal justice system.  
• A lawyer with prosecutorial experience  
• A lawyer with current or recent criminal defense experience  
• Individuals with diversity and inclusion experience. 
• Individuals who work with or volunteer with community service providers that traditionally 

work with individuals involved in the criminal justice system.  
• Individuals of diverse backgrounds and varying ages.  

Section 5. Member Selection: Upon passage of this Resolution, the City Manager will gather names for 
the organization Task Force members, individual Task Force members and the Chairperson. For 
individual members, staff can utilize existing systems for selection of members to Boards and 
Commissions. The Mayor and City Council with assistance from City staff will make recommendations 
for the Task Force. The City Manager will prepare a resolution for Council for the April 27, 2021 regular 
City Council meeting to confirm the appointment of the Task Force members and a Chairperson of the 
Task Force.  

Section 6. Work Plan: Within thirty (30) days following appointment, the Task Force shall prepare a work 
plan and schedule for presentation to the Public Safety and Legal Standing Advisory Committee meeting. 
At a minimum, the work plan shall set forth the Task Force’s roles and responsibilities in the areas with 
which they have been charged and provide any recommendations for additional areas in the field of 
critical incident management and training that may be applicable. The Task Force will provide regular 
updates to the Public Safety and Legal Standing Advisory Committee throughout the term.  

Section 7. Staff Support: The City Manager’s Office and City Attorney’s Office will provide staff support 
to the Task Force, to include the active and regular involvement of the Chief of Police and members of 
the Clarkston Police Department. In addition, the City Manager and staff shall assist with bringing in 
subject-matter experts to speak to the Task Force regarding best practices. The City Manager is 
authorized to hire a third-party facilitator to work directly with the Task Force.  

Section 8. Meetings: Meetings will be held on a regular and timely basis that shall be determined by the 
Task Force members. Meetings will include members of the Task Force and staff support for the Task 
Force, as determined by the City Manager and the City Attorney. The Task Force Chairperson or a 
designee shall prepare an agenda and take minutes at each meeting of the Task Force. Minutes will be 
forwarded via email to the Mayor and City Councilmembers, as well as the Task Force members and staff 
support. In addition to input at meetings, the Task Force shall take input from community members and 
other stakeholders regarding their charge.  

Section 9. Final Report: The Task Force shall submit a final report with their findings and 
recommendations to the Public Safety and Legal Standing Advisory Committee at least sixty (60) days 



prior to the end of the Task Force’s term.  The Task Force shall present a final report to the Mayor and 
City Council at the end of the Task Force’s term.   

Section 10. All resolutions or parts of resolutions of the City in conflict herewith are hereby rescinded. 

SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021.  
 
ATTEST: CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
By _____________________  _____________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk  Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 
 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES MEETING 

DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: A request to discuss/vote to amend Chapter 5, Article II of the City Code 
concerning property maintenance to clarify that a warning shall be issued before a citation 
is issued for a violation of the property maintenance code.  

 
 

PURPOSE: Mayor and City Council shall discuss/vote to clarify and amend the Clarkston Code 
of Ordinance to include the process of issuing a warning before the issuance of a citation. 

BACKGROUND: 
Staff received a request from Council to codify the process of issuing warnings, notice of 
violations and citations related to properties and/or businesses that are not in compliance 
with the Code of Ordinances in the City of Clarkston. This discussion is to determine whether 
the current codified procedure (*Section 5-66- Notice of violation) is efficient as written or shall 
be amended to clarify the current process.    

*Section. 5-66. - Notice of violation.
Enforcement shall begin with a written notice of violation provided to the owner, 
occupant, or operator. The notice shall contain a deadline of no less than two (2) days and 
not more than thirty (30) days for compliance, which may be extended by the director. If 
the owner, occupant, or operator has received a notice of violation of any provision of this 
chapter within the preceding twenty-four-month period no additional notice of violation 
under this section shall be required before issuing a citation for any subsequent alleged 
violation of this chapter. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

ITEM NO: G7 

ACTION TYPE: 
Ordinance 

HEARING TYPE:   
Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning/Economic and 
Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES  NO 
Pages: 3 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning/Economic and Development Director 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Sec. 5-66. -– Warning Nnotice of violation. 

Enforcement shall begin with a written notice of violationwarning provided 

to the owner, occupant, or operator of the property where a violation 

exists. The warning notice shall contain set forth a reasonable deadline of 

no less than two (2) days and not more than thirty (30) days for to bring 

the property into compliance, which may be extended by the director. If 

the owner, occupant or operator has received a warning notice of violation 

of violation of any provision of this chapter article within the preceding 

twenty-four-month period, then no additional warning notice of violation 

under this section shall be required before issuing a citation for any 

subsequent alleged violation of this chapter article. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 5, ARTICLE II OF THE CITY CODE CONCERNING 
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE TO CLARIFY THAT A WARNING SHALL 
BE ISSUED BEFORE A CITATON IS ISSUED FOR A VIOLATION OF 
THE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to ensure that the owner(s) or occupant(s) of 
property are given a reasonable opportunity (under the particular circumstances of 
each case) to correct a violation of the City’s Property Maintenance Code before 
being issued a citation; and 

WHEREAS, the City is empowered to immediately address imminent threats to 
life safety through the Building Official’s authority to revoke certificates of 
occupancy. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Clarkston City Council that the 
City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 5-66 of the City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“Sec. 5-66. – Warning notice. 
 
Enforcement shall begin with a written warning provided to the owner, 
occupant, or operator of the property where a violation exists. The 
warning notice shall set forth a reasonable deadline of no less than two (2) 
days and not more than thirty (30) days  to bring the property into 
compliance, which may be extended by the director. If the owner, 
occupant, or operator has received a warning notice of violation of any 
provision of this article within the preceding twenty-four-month period, 
then no additional warning notice under this section shall be required 
before issuing a citation for any subsequent violation of this article.” 
 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective imideately upon its adoption by 
the City Council and signature of the Mayor. 



SO ORDAINED this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

CITY COUNCIL, 
CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
 
 
_________________________ 
BEVERLY BURKS, Mayor 

         (SEAL) 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 
 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: A request to abandon Wagoner Street. 

 

 
 

PURPOSE: Mayor and City Council shall discuss a request to abandon Wagoner Street from 
Kathleen Andres (3769 Church Street) and Maridale Goff and Steve Goff 
(3757 Church Street). 

NEED/ IMPACT:   
In order for the City of consider a request to abandon a public road, the applicant(s) must: 
1. Submit a letter explaining a request
2. Explain the detailed portion (termini) of the road requesting to be abandoned and why the

request is being made.

BACKGROUND: 
On November 19, 2020, the City received a formal request to abandon Wagoner Street from 
the property owners of 3757 and 3769 Church Street, based on a hardship caused by traffic 
impediment and sanitary problems. At 226 +/- feet in length, currently Wagoner Street is 
posted as a No-Thru-Traffic street. The applicant’s properties currently have driveways to 
access their properties off Church Street and Wagoner Street and abut Wagoner Street.  

At the request of the City the applicants have submitted an appraisal valuing Wagoner Street at 
$5000.  At this time, a current survey and legal description of Wagoner Street are not included 
in the appraisal packet as this is a substantial cost to the applicants at this phase of the request. 

At this time, the City has not received any formal plans for development of the parcels that 
abut Wagoner Street. 

Recommendation:  
The City recommends to not abandon Wagoner Street. 

ITEM NO: G8 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
 Council Meeting  

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning/Economic and 
Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Robin Gomez-City Manager 

Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning/Economic and Development Director 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Firefox about:blank

1 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

2 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

3 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

4 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

5 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

6 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

7 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

8 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

9 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

10 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

11 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

12 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



Firefox about:blank

13 of 13 1/20/2021, 7:31 PM



0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005
mi

Date Printed: 2/8/2021 ±
Wagoner Street DeKalb  Count y GIS  Disclaimer

The map s and data, contained on DeKalb Cou nty’s Geograp h ic Information System (GIS) are su bject to constant change. Wh ile DeKalb Cou nty striv es to p rovide accu rate and u p -
to-date information, th e information is p rovided “as is” w ith ou t w arranty, rep resentation or gu arantee of any kind as to th e content, seq u ence, accuracy, timeliness or comp leteness
of any of th e database information prov ided herein.  DeKalb County explicitly disclaims all rep resentations and w arranties, inclu ding, w ith ou t limitation, th e implied w arranties of
merch antability and fitness for a particu lar p u rpose.  In no ev ent sh all DeKalb County be liable for any special, indirect, or conseq u ential damages w h atsoev er resulting from loss of
use, data, or p rofits, w h eth er in an action of contract, negligence, or oth er actions, arising ou t of or in connection w ith  th e u se of th e map s and/or data h erein prov ided.  Th e map s
and data are for illustration p urposes only and shou ld not be relied u p on for any reason. Th e map s and data are not su itable for site-sp ecific decision-making nor shou ld it be
construed or u sed as a legal descrip tion. Th e areas depicted by map s and data are ap p roximate, and are not necessarily accu rate to su rv eying or engineering standards.



0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005
mi

Wag o ner Street 

Chu rch Street 

Ro wland Street 

Date Printed: 2/8/2021 ±
Wagoner Street DeKalb  Count y GIS  Disclaimer

The map s  and data, co ntained on DeKalb Co u nty’s  Geo g rap hic Info rmatio n Sys tem (GIS) are s u bject to cons tant chang e. While DeKalb Co u nty s triv es  to  p ro v ide accu rate and u p -
to -date info rmatio n, the info rmatio n is p ro v ided “as is ” w itho u t w arranty, rep resentatio n or g u arantee of any kind as to  the co ntent, sequ ence, accuracy, timelines s  o r co mp letenes s
of any of the database info rmation pro v ided herein.  DeKalb Co u nty explicitly disclaims  all rep resentations and w arranties, inclu ding , w itho u t limitatio n, the implied w arranties o f
merchantability and fitnes s  fo r a particu lar p u rp o s e.  In no  ev ent shall DeKalb Co u nty be liable fo r any s pecial, indirect, o r co nsequ ential damages w hats o ev er res u lting  from lo s s  o f
u s e, data, o r p ro fits , w hether in an actio n of co ntract, neg lig ence, o r o ther actions, arising  o u t o f o r in connectio n with the u s e of the map s  and/o r data herein pro v ided.  The map s
and data are for illu s tratio n p u rp o s es  o nly and s ho u ld no t be relied u p on fo r any reas o n. The map s  and data are no t s u itable for site-s p ecific decisio n-making  no r s ho u ld it be
co ns trued or u s ed as a leg al descrip tio n. The areas depicted by map s  and data are ap p ro ximate, and are no t neces s arily accu rate to  s u rv eying o r engineering  s tandards.



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:   Adopt a Mask Mandate Ordinance 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Adopting a Mask Mandate Ordinance.  In July 2020, the City Council adopted 
a resolution for mandating mask usage in Clarkston. 
Council to consider creating and adopting an ordinance to require and regulate mask wearing  in Clarkston. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G9 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution HEARING TYPE: 

Council  Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Robin I. Gomez 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



ORDINANCE NO.  _____ 
  

 AN ORDINANCE BY THE CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL  
REQUIRING THE USE OF MASKS OR FACE COVERINGS  

IN PUBLIC DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC. 
  
  WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic remains ongoing and over 500,000 Americans 
have died from COVID-19; and   

  
WHEREAS, the presence of community spread in Georgia and DeKalb County has been 

confirmed; and 
  

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2020, Governor Brian Kemp declared that a public health 
emergency exists in the State of Georgia due to the spread of COVID-19 within Georgia and has 
“strongly encouraged” all Georgia residents and visitors to wear maks; and 
  

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a respiratory illness, transmitted through person-to-person 
contact or by contact with surfaces contaminated with the virus and persons infected with COVID-
19 may become symptomatic two to fourteen days after exposure; and 
  

WHEREAS, asymptomatic (including presymptomatic) infected persons are infectious 
and, without mitigation, the current estimate is that 40%-80% of infections occur from individuals 
without symptoms; and 
  

WHEREAS, respiratory droplets from infected persons are a major mode of COVID-
19 transmission. This understanding is the basis of the recommendations for physical distancing, 
and of the personal protective equipment guidance for healthcare workers. Droplets do not only 
come from coughing or sneezing; droplets are generated via talking and breathing; and 
  

WHEREAS, there is scientific consensus that the use of face coverings reduces the 
transmissibility per contact by reducing transmission of infected droplets; and 

 
WHEREAS, guidelines published by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control 

(CDC) recommend that all people wear cloth face coverings in public settings where other physical 
distancing measures may be difficult to maintain. CDC also advises the use of simple cloth face 
coverings to slow the spread of the virus and help people who may have the virus and do not know 
it from transmitting it to others; and 

  
WHEREAS, decreased transmissibility due to face covering use could substantially 

reduce the death toll and economic impact while the cost of the intervention is low; and 
 
WHEREAS, the posting of prominent signage at public places plays an important role in 

reminding persons to wear a face covering; and  
  



WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Clarkston (Section 1.03, subsections (l), (n) and 
(w)) grants to the City Council the power to protect the safety, health, and welfare of the public by 
prohibiting conduct detrimental to public health. 

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Clarkston City Council as follows: 

  
1.) Face Covering Required in Public Places.  While indoors, all customers, employees 

and other users of restaurants, retail stores, grocery stores and all other public places 
shall wear a mask or face covering. 
 

2.) Signs Required at Entrances to Public Places.  Every public place in the City shall post 
a sign at each public entrance to such business stating “MASKS REQUIRED” [here 
we would describe the exact size and details of the required sign or state that the City 
will provide the signs]   
 

3.) Use of Face Coverings Outdoors.  All persons shall wear a mask or face covering while 
outdoors in an environment in which people who do not reside in the same household 
cannot maintain at least six feet of physical distance from one another (as recommended 
by the CDC).   

 
4.) Reasonable exceptions to the use of face coverings are permitted for: 

• Children under the age of ten (10) 
• People who cannot wear face coverings due to documented medical or behavioral 

conditions 
• People whose religious beliefs prevent them from wearing a face covering 
• While eating or drinking 
• When complying with the directions of a law enforcement officer or for the purposes 

of verifying a person’s identity 

5.) Enforcement.  The City Manager and his designee(s), including the Police Department, 
shall enforce this ordinance as follows: 

a. any person found to be in violation of this resolution shall first be given a 
warning and an opportunity to put on a mask or leave the public area; 

b. the City Manager or designee shall offer the person a mask in connection with 
providing the warning required by (a); 

c. if the person violating this resolution refuses to comply with this resolution after 
being given a warning and offered a mask, then he or she shall be issued a 
citation. 

d. a person convicted of violating this ordinance shall be assessed a fine of Twenty 
Five Dollars ($25.00) by the Municipal Court. 
 

6.) This ordinance shall be effective immediately and shall remain in effect until January 
1, 2022, unless repealed, modified or extended by further action of the City Council.  
 



SO RESOLVED, this ___ day of February, 2021. 
 

   CITY COUNCIL 
   CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA  
 
 
  __________________________________ 
   BEVERLY BURKS, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 
 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_ ____________ 
Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 

 









CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

 
 

PURPOSE:    
City Council to discuss making a request to the Georgia legislators to formally change the name and/or the area of 
authority of the Clarkston Development Authority. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO:  G10 

ACTION TYPE: 
Discussion HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting MEETING DATE: March 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Adopt Resolution to Request GA General Assembly to Dissolve  the CRA

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES    NO 
Pages: 2 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO  

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL REQUESTING 
THE LOCAL DELEGATION OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO 
REPEAL ACT NO. 134 OF THE 2017 GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND 
DISSOLVE THE CLARKSTON DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. 

WHEREAS, in 2017 the Clarkston City Council requested the General Assembly 
to create a special development authority for the City of Clarkston; and 

WHEREAS, this request resulted in the passage of Act. 134, which created the 
Clarkston Development Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Clarkston Development Authority has never taken any official 
action or incurred any indebtedness and holds no assets or obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council appreciates the General Assembly’s 
responsiveness to the City’s request in 2017 but has found that the resulting 
Clarkston Development Authority has not been ideally suited to the City’s needs, 
in part because it includes the entire city in its development area; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Clarkston would prefer to activate a Downtown 
Development Authority pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-42-1 et seq. and have the 
flexibility to set a downtown area for such Authority to focus on and adjust the 
boundaries of such area as needed 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Clarkston City Council that the 
City of Clarkston hereby requests that its representatives in the Georgia General 
Assembly sponsor and support local legislation to repeal Act 134 and thereby 
dissolve the special Clarkston Development Authority created thereby. 

 

 SO RESOLVED, this ___ day of February, 2021. 
 

  CITY COUNCIL 
  CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA  
 
 
  __________________________________ 
   BEVERLY BURKS, Mayor 
 



ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

_ ____________ 
Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 



A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE GEORGIA STATE LEGISLATURE CREATE 

THE CLARKSTON DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, DEFINE ITS 

PURPOSE AND POWERS, TO DETERMINE THE PROCESS AND CRITERIA BY 
WHICH MEMBERS ARE APPOINTED, TO DETERMINE THE PROCESS BY WHICH 

OFFICERS ARE ELECTED, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

SPONSORED BY: BEVERLY BURKS AND A WET EYASU 

Whereas, it has been determined by the Mayor and Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia 
that there is a need in the City for the revitalization and redevelopment of the central business 
district of the City to develop and promote for the public good and general welfare, trade 
commerce industry and employment opportunities; and 

Whereas, it has been determined by the Mayor and Council of the City that revitalization and 
redevelopment of the central business district by financing projects under Clarkston specific 
Downtown Redevelopment Authorities Law will develop and promote current and new trade, 
commerce, industry and employment opportunities thus promoting public good and the general 
welfare of the City; and 

Whereas, the Mayor and Council of the City have determined that it is in the public interest and 
welfare of the people of the City to revitalize and redevelop the central business district of the 
City; and 

Whereas, the Mayor and Council of the City have determined that it is in the public interest and 
welfare of the people of the City to create a Clarkston Downtown Development Authority 
specific to the needs of the City of Clarkston; 

Whereas, the Mayor and Council of the City have determined that it is in the public interest and 
welfare of the people of the City to seek legislation which will all for the creation of a 
specialized Clarkston Downtown Development Authority during the 2017 Legislative Session, 
so that the Authority may be activated when needed at a later date; 

Now, therefore be it resolved that the Mayor and Council of the City hereby respectfully 
requests that the Georgia Legislature create legislation for a specialized Clarkston Downtown 
Development Authority containing the following components; 

1. Board of Directors shall consist of seven members, each shall serve in such capacity for
the number of years set forth in a subsequent Organizing Resolution, that two of the
members shall be a taxpayer residing in the municipal corporation for which the authority
is created; or an owner or operator of a business located within the downtown
development area and a taxpayer residing in DeKalb County, that two of the members
may reside outside of the municipal corporation for which the authority is created and is a.
taxpayer residing in DeKalb County provided they shall possess specific experience,
knowledge or professional expertise in the fields of banking, finance, real estate
development, community development or other areas of expertise related to economic
































	C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS C1) Presentation 2021 Waterway Cleanup – March 27, 2021
	D. OLD BUSINESS
	E. NEW BUSINESS
	Clarkston - final-2021 Waterway Cleanup for Council Presentation 2-15-21.pdf
	ANNUAL VOLUNTEER �Waterway clean up EVENT
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Collaborations & Results 

	Summary Resolution RESOLUTION CALLING UPON PRESIDENT BIDEN AND THE U.S. CONGRESS TO.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion- Adopt a Resolution Calling upon President Biden and the U.S. Congress to provide additional assistance to the Rental Housing Community

	Summary Proclamation in recognition of Women's History Month .pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion – Proclamation in recognition of Women's History Month

	Summary Proclamation in recognition of National Read Across America Day on March 2nd.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion – Adopt a Proclamation in recognition of National Read Across America Day on March 2nd

	Summary Create Task Force Police Policies .pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion – Adopt a Resolution to create a task force to provide recommendations on policies and training for the Clarkston Police Department

	Summary Adopting a Mask Mandate Ordinance .pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion – Adopt a Mask Mandate Ordinance

	SUMMARY CLARKSTON DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Clarkston Development Authority name

	Agenda  Council Meeting March 2  2021.pdf
	F. OLD BUSINESS
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:

	Draft Minutes  Council Meeting  February 2 2021.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. EXECUTIVE SESSION to Discuss a Legal Matter
	I. ADJOURNMENT:
	I. ADJOURNMENT:
	Jamie Carroll made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4, 0).




